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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Thousands of US Dollars (Unless otherwise stated)

Thousands of US

Dollars (unless otherwise
stated)

2017

Reporting period ended 31 December

Total Income
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Profit/(Loss) after tax

Dividends declared

Shareholders’ Funds
Total Assets

Capital / Risk Weighted
Assets

Return on Equity
Cost Income Ratio

Dollar / Sterling exchange rate
Year end
Average

14,290
2,982
1,966

77,994
436,039

45%

3.82%
76%

$1.35
$1.30

Union Bank serves you better

2016

31 December

11,024
685
499

75,382

447,820

38%

0.91%
87%

$1.23
$1.32

S0

2015

31 December

10, 593
958
856

73,599
300,691

49%

1.30%
90%

$1.48
$1.53

A member of the
Union Bank of Nigeria Plc Financial Group

2014

31 December

10,605
1,483
1,161

74,061
431,568

74%

2.0%
87%

$1.56
$1.66

2013

31 December

11,413
(371)
(455)

72,647
489,215

35%

(0.8%)
85%

$1.65
§1.57




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Opening Remarks
It is my pleasure to present the 2017 financial veport for Union Bank UK (*UBUK” or ‘the Bank’), detailing the Bank’s

strong performance during the year, in spite of uncertainty in the operating envirenment.

The UK Economy
The UK economy is estimated to have grown by 1.8% in 2017 (down from 1.9% in 2016), making the UK the slowest

growing (7 nation in 2017, from being the joint fastest (with Germany) last year. This performance was fargely
expected, reflecting widespread uncertainty regarding the counfry’s futwre outside the EU. The sharp decline in the
value of Sterling following the UK’s decision to leave the EU also raised the costs of imports, driving inflation; in June
2017, Sterting was worth about $1.30, compared with $1.47 pre-referendum in June 2016. The Consumer Prices Index
closed the year at 3%, among the highest inflation rates in recent years, and exceeding the Bank of England’s (BoE’s)
projection by more than one percentage point. Inflation was also driven by a significant rise in oif prices, which
increased from $55/bl in January 2017 to nearly §65/b] in December 2(17.

In November, the BoE raised interest rates for the first time in over a decade, from 0.25% to 0.5%, with the central bank
projecting "very gradual” increases over the next three years, Rates had previously stood at 0.5% for seven years
between 2009 and 2016, before being cut to 0.25% in August 2016 in the aftermath of the Brexit vote. The decision to
increase the rales was largely due fo high Inflation driven by the weakness of Sterling and the low level of

unempioyment.

Looking ahead, most economists expect growth to be no more than 1.5% in 2018, behind most of the rest of Europe as
well as other developed countries. Growth will be driven by positive indicators such as an upswing in global export
activity, as well as negative indicators stemming from the uncertainty over the outcome of the Brexit negotiations.
Tnvestment spending is likely to be subdued, as businesses would be unelear what trading arrangements the UK would
have with the EU following Brexit, and consumer purchasing power is Fkely to remain weakened due to high, albeit

reduced, inflation rates.

The Nigerian Economy
The Nigerian economy experienced mixed fortunes in 2017, following a tumultuous 2016. The first quarter was

characterized by a steadily weakening Naira, negative GDP growth and a scarcily of foreign exchange, all driven by
plummeting oil prices, weak oil production figures and significantly reduced foreign reserves. However, following five
consecutive quarters of contraction, Nigeria’s GDP grew by (.55% year-on-year in the second quarter, signalling the
country’s emergence from the recession.

04 indicators improved throughout the year, reflected by stable oil production in the Niger-Delta and rising oil prices
fopening at $55.01 in Janwary 2017 and closing at $64.64 in December 2017). Inflation maintained a downward slide
throughout 2017, dropping from 18.72% in January and closing the year at 15.37% in December. The Naira dropped to
as low as }525/$ in early 2017, before stabilizing at ~N360/$, largely due to the introduction of special FX windows
for SMEs, investors and exporters. External reserves also grew by $12.66 billion during the year, closing at $38.06

billion on December 29.

In 2018, we expect that the improved economic trends that the country experienced in 2017 will continue during the
year. Oil prices are expected to increase to ~$70/b1 due to the sustained OPEC cuts, and the Federal Government (FG)
is likely to continue the dialogue with militants to maintain production. These are expected to help sustain the country’s
external reserves, maintain the official exchange rate and record a GDP growth rate of 2.1% (according to the

International Monetary Fund).

However, we believe that the government has a critical role to play in diversifying the economy — for example, through
the implementation of the Economic Recovery and Growth Plan (ERGP) (2017-20) — to increase the contribution of
other sectors to the economy and offset any consequences of fluctuations in oil indices. The ERGP focuses on six
priority sectors; agriculture, manufacturing, sotid minerals {including iron, gold and coal), services (including financial
services, ICT, tourism, and creative industries), oil & gas, and construction & real estate. The FG produced specific
plans and initiatives for each sector, and defined broader enablers (e.g. policy and sector objectives) o drive the plan.
Overall, the plan sceks to invest in people (by improving access to good and affordable healtheare and education,
fostering social inclusion, promoting job creation, and protecting the environment) and improve governance (by
entrenching transparency and fighting corruption, reinforcing security, reforming the public service, and strengthening

coordination with subnational governments).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
CONTINUED

2017 Financial Performance
UBUK’s 2017 performance showed a good improvement on its 2016 performance, with pre-tax profit at $2.982 million
(2016: $0.685 million), the highest since 201 L. The cosi-to-income ratio fell to 76% (2016: 87%) and return-on-equily

rose to 3.8% (2016: 0,91%),

Our 2018 will build on the success of 2017 as we continue with our strafegic objectives, including the roll out of an
exciting retail proposition and further development of trade business in our target market of Sub Saharan Africa.

Outlook
2018 will serve as a critical year for the Bank as the Group further positions itself as Nigeria’s most reliable and trusted

banking partner. UBUK will leverage on the significant progress made during its transformation era, while focusing on
its strategic priorities {or accelerated growth and recognition.

Although the year ahead will present its own challenges with regards to our operating environmen(, we remain
optimistic that the Bank is well positioned to maintain its healthy and improving performance over the years, by
delivering on our promises (o our customers and increasing vakue to all our shareholders.

Finally, I would like to express my appreciation to all our external stakeholders, including our customers, investors and
partners, for their sustained confidence in and loyalty towards the bani. My appreciation also extends to all our
employees, for their critical role in realising the Bank’s corporate aspirations,

Thank yon

Clavin Laws

Chairiman
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Overview
Union Bank UK’s (‘UBUK’ ar ‘the Bank’) sirategic aim is to primarily serve as an extension of Union Bank of Nigeria

in the UK serving and partnering with our clients on their specialised financial needs revolving around regional and
international trade, Our focus is to build our core business segments of Retail, Treasury/Corporate and Commercial both
vertically, by offering a competitive range of products, and horizonfally so that our customers recognise UBUK for all
of their banking needs.

Our ambition is to be a leading provider of specialised {inancial services to clients with interests in the UK, Europe,
Middle East and Afiica. We will do this with the highest standards of conduct and by always pulting the customer first.

Performance
The Bank’s performance in 2017 reflected an upturn in economic conditions producing a pre-tax profit of US$2.982m

against the previous year of US$0.685m.

Interest income at USS14.1m is up on the 2016 figure of US$9.6m. Dealing and exchange profits at US$0.3m were
down on the previeus year figure of US$0.66 Im. Fee and commission income at US$2.09m were stightly down on the

previous year of US$2.14m. Our major bond holdings were sold during the year.

Costs were again maintained within budget for the year but showed an increase from the previous year due to increased
professional fees. Impairment charges, amounted to US$0.331m against the previous year of US$0.702m.

Key Performance Indicators
The key indicators of the Bank’s performance monitored by the Board are those relating to profitability as measured by

the pre-tax return on equity (ROE) and Capital over risk weighted assets.

In the 12 months to 31 December 2617, the Bank’s returns on equity and capital over risk weighted assets were 3.8%
(2016 0.91%) and 45% (2016: 38%) respectively. The key indicator of efficiency monitored by the Board is the

cost/income ratio which improved to 76% from 87% in 2016.

The Bank recognises that the movement in Sterfing/US$ rates could impact on its costs and it wauld take appropriate
sleps if there is a significant negative movement. The Bank’s results are shown in the statement of comprehensive
income on page 18, with the impact on shareholders’ funds shown in the statement of changes in equity on page 21.

Future Prospects
The Bank continues to diversify its business geographicatly in both the lending and fixed income revenue streams which

is in alignment with a strategy designed to enable UBUK to thrive without undue reliance on business secured from the
parent company. Business is increasingly being sought and undertaken in other sub-Saharan Aftican markets cither in
asset-backed transactions or co-financing with established infernational banks and multifateral developmen agencies.

Overall, performance remains closely linked to developments in Nigeria, including the financial strength and
performance of the parent bank,

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks associated with the business of the Bank are dealt with in the Directors’ Report. The Bank is firmly

commitied to risk management and to this end has continued to invest in this area in the form of experienced staff and
systems.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for risk management policies, limits and risk appetite. It is supported
by two of its standing Committees, the Board Risk Committee and Board Audit & Compliance Committee that assist in
formulating policy and provide strategic direction for all aspects of risk management, These Committees, in turn, charge
management to develop, update and implement these policies, controls and limits with risk management ensuring that
there is no event or combination of events that wilt materially affect the stability of the Bank.

Management operates through a number of committees, namely The Asset and Liability Commitiee, Management Risk
Committee, Credit Committee and Management Committee, each having its own ferms of reference.

All credit decisions and new products require the approval of one or more committees depending on the amount
required and are initiaily reviewed and recommended by the Risk Department before submission to the relevant
committee for approval. Risk will monitor the credit until drawdown {o ensure all conditions precedent are met. All
portfolios and [imits are continuously monitored by senior management via the monthly Management Risk Committee.




STRATEGIC REPORT
CONTINUED

Maragement closely follows the economic situation in Nigeria via the ALCO and evaluates the possible impact on our
portfolios. In addition, the Bank makes an assessment with regard to the economic climate in the other major markets in
which the Bank participates, the financial position of the Union Bank of Nigeria, current and prospective regulatory
developments and their likely impact on the Bank’s capital and liquidity requirements, and the Bank’s approach to the
management of ils other key risks, as well as curtent budgets and financial forecasts for profitability, capital and
liquidity requirements, The Bank is satisfied that, as a result of these assessments and its prudent approach to risk
management, there would be no unexpected negative impact from these factors,

Approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf of the board

N

David Forster
Managing Direttor / Chief Executive 23 April 2018




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

Union Bank UK plc (UBUK or the Bank) was incorporated in England and Wales on 10" February 2003 as a wholly
owmned subsidiary of the Union Bank of Nigeria Plc (UBN).

The Bank is authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (FSMA 2000), to carry on regulated
financial services activities, including deposit-taking and dealing in investments as principal. The business of the
Bank includes the provision of retail and commercial banking, treasury and trade finance services.

The Bank has established and maintains the management structure, policies, systems and procedures necessary 1o
enable full compliance with the rules and regulations of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) and the Prudential
Regulation Authority (PRA).

Directors

The directors of the Bank at the date of this report and thosc who served during the year ended 31 December 2017, are
as follows:

Mr GC Laws - Non-executive Chairman

Mr AC Emuwa - Non-executive

Mr M Phido - Managing Director/Chief Executive resigned 26/5/17
Mr DJ Forster - Managing Director/Chief Executive appointed §2/10/17%
Mrs S Iroche - Non-executive

Mr KS Kasongoe - Non-execative

Mr NJ Richards - Non-executive

*Mr Forster was previously COO and Executive Director and acting
MD/CEO from 26/5/17 prior to his appointment

During the vear, the Bank provided qualifying third party indemnity provision on behalf of the directors.

Going Concern Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

In keeping with the guidance issued by the Financial Reporting Council, the Beard has considered formally whether it is
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis and has concluded that the Bank has sufficient
resonrces to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board has considered a wide
range of information relating to present and future conditions, including that set out under the headings ‘Financial Risk
Management” and ‘Developments in Financial Regulation’ below.

The assessment has regard to the economic climate in the major markets in which the Bank participates, the financial
position of UBN, current and prospective regulatory developments and their likely impacet on the Bank’s capital and
liquidity requirements, and the Bank’s approach to the management of key risks, as well as curent budgets and
financial forecasts for profitability, capital and liguidity requirements.

Financial Results
The Bank’s financial statements are prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as endorsed by

the European Union (EU). The finctional currency of the Bank for finaneial reporting purposes is the US Dollar (US$),
being the currency in which the majority of its assets, liabilities, capital and revenues are denominated.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 are shown on pages 18 fo 52, The profit for the year after
taxation amounted to US$ 1,966,000 (2016: US$ 499,000).

The directors propose the payment of a dividend for the year of US$ 3,000,000 (2016: US$nil).




DIRECTORS® REPORT
CONTINUED

Financial Risk Management

The principal risks associated with the business of the Bank are credit risk, liquidity risk, market interest rate risk and
operational risk,

The Bank has established a comprehensive enterprise risk management framework to manage these risks, guided by the
Basel Committee’s principles for sound risk management and compliance with Basel 111 and FCA and PRA prudential
regulations, including those in respect of liquidity risk. The Board establishes the risk governance structure and sets the
overall risk appetite for both risks to the capital and the liquidity position of the Bank, together with key risk
management policies, including limits relating to credit, market and liquidity risks. The framework provides for
independent oversight of business units, risk identification, assessment and measurement, as well as stress testing of key
risks and various other risk mitigations and monitoring techniques.

Financial and other risks are assessed and documented as part of the Bank’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) whereby 'treated risk' after mitigation is considered and internal capital allocated accordingly, The
assessment of risks and allocation of capital recognises the Bank’s commitment to the Nigerian and Afiican markets.
These include political, infrastructure and concentration risks, including dependence on indusiry sectors such as oil and
gas. These risks are significantly mitigated by virtue of the specialised knowledge and experience of the Bank and
UBN, which permits the taking of informed decisions as to risk assumption and mitigation, The Bank produced a new
ICAAP as at 30 September 2017.

The Bank has a clearly defined risk appetite including policies for the identification of key risks and also has in place
Credit Grading and Key Risk Indicator tools.

As required by the UK regulatory authoritics, the Bank prepares an Individual Liquidily Adequacy Assessment
(ILAAP) with the latest document as at 30 June 2017. The framework is designed to assess whether the Bank is able to
survive liquidity stresses of varying magnitude and duration, including the provision to build up a liquidity asset buffer
(LAB} of UK Government or similar quatity securities to be used in liquidity stress event.

The results of this ILAAP, which has been reviewed and approved by the Board, indicated that as at 30 June 2017, there
was @ positive overail net cumulative gap within the three-month stress period and that the LAB requirement was
1i85$26.08m, Further information concerning the Bank's policies for managing risks associated with financial assets and
liabilities is set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

The Bank has completed a Recovery plan which was approved by the Board on 2 March 2017, The process includes
identifying events and triggers thereto which would force the Bank to need to recover from an actual or imminent failure
of all or part of its business and agreeing, in consultation with the twin regulatory authorities, the critical economic
functions undertaken by the Bank for which a Resolution Pack will be put in place to be used by those authorities or
their appointed agents,

Developments in Financial Regulation

The Bank continues (o monitor developments in relation to Basel 1l In addition to traditional capital requirements,
banks will also be required to build up Capital Requirements Directive IV (CRDIV) buffers, Capital Conservation and
Counter Cyelical Buffer (CCyB), 2.5% of RWA between 1 January 2017 and [ January 2020,

During 2017, the Bank of England’s Financial Policy Commiitee (FPC) recommended that the CCyR rate for UK
exposures be increased from 0% to 0.5% with effect from 28 June 2018. It decided to raise it further to 1% with effect
from 28 November 2018 but alse agreed to reconsider the adequacy of a 1% CCyB rate during the first half of 2018 as
it monitors the overall risk environment. Previously, in 2016 the FPC stated that it intends to set a CCyB for UK
exposures in the region of 1% when risks are judged to be neither subdued nor elevated and this expectation will be kept

under review,

The Bank continues to maintain HQLA 10% above the regulatory minimum in order to maintain the Pillar 1 Liquidity
Coverage Ratio at required levels. From 1 Jan 2018 Net Stable Funding Ratio will be added to liquidity Pilar 1
standard. The European Banking Authority (EBA), introduced Common Reporting Standards in 2014 and the Bank
continues to report the data items set to its reporting portfolio to Prudential Regulation Authority UK (PRA).

In the UK, the PRA has specifically focused on firm resolution as weli as progressing the implementation in the UK of
changes to the regulation of financial institutions through amendments to the Capital Requirements Directive {CRD).
There is some evidence that reporting is being synchronised, for example with the Contingency Funding Plan prepared
by regulated firms now incorporated within Recovery planning,
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

The resulis of the Bank’s ILAAP and Recavery planning have been discussed in the Financiat Risk Management section
above.

Corporate Culture & Values
The UBN Group has, at its heart, the corporate values of Initiative, Customer Focus, Accountability, Respect and

Efficiency. These values are the foundation of our dealings with customers, and each other, and are regularly reviewed
by the Board and staff to ensure that we have a working eulture that sustains our position as a highly respected provider
of quality banking services. Tn risk cubture the Bank promotes compliance with the “spirit” as well as the “rule” of
regulation, and that all risks should be fully identified, assessed and understood before they are incurred. The Bank
operates a “Three Lines of Defence” business model, to promote effective and controlled risk taking.

Information Management

The Bank seeks to ensure that expenditure on IT and Communications remains appropriate to meet all regulatory and
business needs.

The Bank recognises the importance of safeguarding client data and has developed policies and physical and lfogical
access controls which, coupled with staff awareness training, are designed to protect against data loss.

Employee Matters
The Bank recognises that its performance is dependent on the quality of its work force and the investment it makes in

training and development. It is the Bank's policy that its staff should have the opportunity to develop to their full
potential, promote its business in a manner consistent with the highest standards and recognise its envirommental and
other responsibilities as a corporate citizen. Staff competencies, training and development are planried consistently with
corporate objectives, inchuding the management of risk, and staff are appraised and rewarded accordingly.

Property and Equipment, Intangible Assets
Changes in property and equipment and intangible assets are set out in notes 22 and 23 to the financial statements.

Directors” Representation
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each

aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Bank’s auditor is unaware; and each of the directors has taken
all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and

to establish that the Bank’s auditor is aware of that information.

Auditors
The Board approved BDO LLP as their auditors.

By order of the Board on 23 April 2018

Managing Dijrector / Chief Executive
I King’s Avns Yard
London, EC2 7AF
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in respect of the Strategic Report and
Directors' Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requircs the directors to prepare financial stalements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordanee with ITFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a troe
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to:

+ select suitable accounting poficies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
* state whether they have been prepared in accordance with TFRSs as adopted by the EU; and

* prepare the financial stafements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company witl confinue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the

company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and

enable them (o ensure thal the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They have general

responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to

prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Website Publication

The Direclors are responsible for ensuring the Directors® Report and financial statements are made available on a
website, Finanoial statements are published on the Company’s website in accordance with legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements, which may vary from legislation in other
Jjurisdictions, The maintcnance and integrity of the Company’s wehsite is the responsibility of the Direclors. The
Directors” responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financial statements contained therein.

Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors of the Bank comprises one executive director, two non-executive directors appointed by UBN,

and three independent non-executive directors one, of whom is the chairman of the Board.

The Board meels at least quarterly and has defined responsibilities for the overall direction, supervision and control of
the Bank, including assessment of the Bank’s competitive position, approval of strategic and financial plans and review
of performance and financial status. It reviews and approves significant changes it the Bank’s structure and
organisation and establishes the risk framework, overall risk appetite and key policies in relation to crediy, large
exposures, impairment, Hquidity and operational risk. The Board also approves and monitors the Bank’s policies,
procedures and processes in connection with the fight against financtal crime.

S12-
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CONTINUED

The Board has three standing comumittees: the Board Risk Committee (BRC), the Board Remuneration & People
Commiltee (BRPC) and the Board Audit & Compliance Committee (BACC). Each of these standing commitices 18
chaired by an independent non-executive director, has written terms of reference and, with the exception of the BACC,
defined limits of authority. The BRC meets as ofien as required but at least quarterly, the BACC and the BRPC meets

quarterly.

The primary functions of the BRC is to consider credit proposals in excess of Lhe limits of authority of the executive
Asseis & Liabilifies and Credit Committees of the Bank, and to monitor compliance with the Bank's credit, large
exposure, impairment, liquidily and market risk policies.

The BACC comprises solely non- cxecutive directors and is chaired by a financially experienced individual. The
MD/CEO, the Head of Finance, CRCO, the Compliance Manager, a representative of the outsourced Internat Auditors
and a representative of the external auditors shall attend meetings only at the invitation of the Committee. The primary
functions of the BACC are lo assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight respensibilities by monitoring and assessing the
integrity of financial statements, the qualifications, independence and performance of externat auditors, compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and the adequacy of systems of internal accounting and financial controls, Its
assessment of the internal control environment is made by reviewing and approving the plans of Internal Audit and
considering and questioning management on operational audit reports.

The BACC also approves the appointment of, and fees paid to, the external auditors for all audit and non-audit work. H
is alse responsible for the appointment of the oulsourced Internal Auditor.

The BRPC has responsibility for considering matters related (o human resource policy, including compensation
arrangements. In particufar, it reviews and recommends to the Board both overal competsation pools and the
remuneration of executive directors and certain other members of senior management. It has responsibility also for
certain matters relating to the working environment of staff and insurance arrangemnents.

-13-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE UNION BANK UK PLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Union Bank (UK) Plc for the year ended 31 December 2017 which
comprise the statement of comprehensive income, the statements of financial position the statements of changes in
equily, the statements of cash flows and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial statements is applicable faw
and International Financial Reporting Standards (EFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

In our opinion the financial staterments:

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2017 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
fiancial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are refevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, inchuding the FRC™s Ethical Standard
as applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion,

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the

Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do net accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to

you where:

+ the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

* the dircelors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a peried of
at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Key andif matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overafl audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial stalements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE UNION BANK UK PLC

CONTINUED

Matter

How the matier was addressed in our audit

Loan Book Provisioning

The principal activity of the Baak is the provision of
credit services (loans and overdrafis) to banks,
corporate and individual customers.

Commensurate with the activities of the Bank, the
total loan loss provision is a material balance subject

to management judgement and estimation.

A nmumber of the Bank’s current facilitics are exposed

We analysed the components of the loan book and
considered manageinent’s processes for
identification and treatment of underperforming
loans.

We made an assessment of the adequacy and
accuracy of the credit provision by reference to
internal and external information 1o establish if
provisioning was in accordance with requirements of

to businesses with dependency on the Nigerian TFRSs,
economy and the ¢i] market. There is an risk that a
loss event has occurred given the macro economic

factors during the year,

We enquired of management regarding the value of
collateral held and checked it to determine whether
the level of provisions is reasonable.

Under IFRSs, the Bank is required to collectively
assess the recoverability of the loan portfolio for alf
items and not just those specifically identified.
Therefore, the Bank has assessed the estimated
Incurred But Not Recorded (IBNR) provision for
performing loan books in light of possibility of the
latent losses.

On a sample basis we performed tests of details on
loan files and made our own assessment of the
valuation and recoverability of loan assefs.

The Incurred But Not Recorded {(IBNR) provision
was recalculated and inputs were verified by
reference to externat information sources to ensure

As this is an accounting estimate subject involving a | that its not materially misstated.

high degree of judgment, it has been identified as a
significant risk.

Our application of materialify
We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements on the audit and in forming our opinion, Materiality is assessed on both quantitative and qualitative

grounds.

Materiality $377.000
Performance materiality £283,000
Specific materiality $254,000
Reporting threshold £7,500

Materiality
We consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstaterents, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements.

We determined the materiality for the Company financial staiements as a whole to be $377,000 (2016: $360,000),
which was set at 0.5% of Tier 1 capital. This provides a basis for determining the nature and extent of our risk
assessment procedures, identifying and assessing the risk of material misstatement and determining the nature and

extent of further audit procedures.

We determined that Tier 1 capital will be the most appropriate benchmark, as regulatory stability is considered to be the
main driver for the Bank at this time.
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We also determined that for other classes of transactions, balances or disclosures relating to the trading performance, a
misstatement of less than materiality for the financial statements as a whole could influence the economic decisions of
users. As a tesult, we determined that a materiality for these areas should be $254,000 (2016: $110,000), representing
8% of income before tax. This specific materiality applies to those items which may affect the Company’s trading
results (being the profit before tax excluding fair value movement on investments and investment property and

amortisation).

Performance Materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance level is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately

low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessment together with owr assessment of the Company’s overall coniro} environment, our
judgment was that overall performance materiality for the Company should be 75% of materiality, namcly $283,000

(2016: $252,000).

Reporting Threshold
An amount befow which identified misstatements are considered as being clearly trivial. We agreed with the Audit

Committee that we would report all individual audit differences in excess of $7.500 (2016: $7,200) to the Audit
Committee and any other differences that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

‘We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measurcs of materiatity discussed above and in
the light of other relevant qualitative considerations.

An overview of the scope of our audit
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the

financial statements as a whole, taking into account the geographic structure of the company, the accounting processes

and controls, and the industry in which the company operates.
Our audit has encompassed all balances in the financial statements, as well as the related disclosures and notes. Qur

audit approach has been driven by our materiality thresholds set out above,

Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the

annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our repart, we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with ous audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in deing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsisten{ with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such maferial inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required o determine whether there is 2 material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required fo report that fact, We have nothing to

report in this regard,

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the strafegic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
pp gal req
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,

we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report,

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report to you if; in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of

the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are frec from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s

report.

Other matters which are required to address
Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the directors on 4 August 2014 to audit

the financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2014 and subsequent financial periods. We were re-appointed
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 by the members of the company at the annual general meeting held
on12 May 2017. The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 4 years, covering the years ending 31 December 2014

to 31 December 2017.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided to the company and we remain
independent of the company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit committee

oyt

Daniel Taylor (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London, UK
Dated: 23 April 2018

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Fees and commission income

Dealing and exchange profit
Total income

Administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment charge

Other operating expense

Profit before tax

Tax charge

Profit for the year after tax

Other comprehensive income from continuing

Note

1]
22/23
21

operations that may be recycled, net of income tax

Unrealised, net change in fair value of financial

assels available for sale

Loss on disposal of financial assets available for
sale reclassified to profit and loss

Total comprehensive income for the year

The result is derived entirely from continuing activities.

Year ended
31 December 2017

31 December 2017

Year ended
31 Deeember 2016

USS'000 USS 000
14,075 9,569
(2,174) (1.347)
11,901 8,222

2,089 2.141
300 661
14,290 11,024
(10,031) (8.805)
(808) (755)
(331) (702)
(138) (77)
2,982 685
(1,016) (186)
1,966 499
409 1.284
237 (185)
646 1,099
2,612 1,598

The notes on pages 23 (o 52 fonn part of these financial statements
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As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
USs'000 LIS3'000
Note
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents {3 17,556 8.825
Loans and advances to banks 19 313,668 330,940
Loans and advances to customers 20 (69,829 04,182
Financial assets available-for-sale 17 31,190 37,532
Financial assets held-to-maturity 18 - 2,085
Intangible assets 23 1,155 1.688
Property and equipment 22 503 695
Deferred tax assets 14 - 7
Financial assets derivatives - 34
Other assets 24 [,340 1.165
Prepayments 792 667
Total Assets 436,039 447,820
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 25 270,095 282,022
Customer accounts 26 83,656 85.554
Financial liabilities derivatives - 34
Other liabilities 27 2,562 i.774
Deferred iax liabilities 14 143 -
Accruals and deferred income 28 609 2,769
Tax Payable 980 285
Total Liabilities 358,045 372,438
Equity
Called up share capital 29 60,090 60,090
Availablc-for-sale reserve - {i86)
Retained earnings 17,904 [5.478
Equity 77,994 75,382
Total Liabilitics and Equity 436,039 447,820
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The financial staternents were approved by the board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 April 2018
Signed on behalf of the board of directors:

N

David Forste
Maraging Djrector / Chief Execulive

The notes on pages 23 to 52 form part of these finaneial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Available-for- Retained Total
Capital Salc Reserves Earnings Lquity
USs3'000 Uss'000 USs§'000 Ussoo0
Balance as at 1 Janvary 2016 60,090 (1,470} 14,979 73,599
Total comprehensive income for the year
Change in fair valuc of assets classified as
available-for-sale - 1,563 - 1,563
Current Tax recognised on fair value loss on
assets classified as available-for-sale - (279) - (279)
Profit for the year - - 499 499
Balance attributable to equity
shareholders as at 31 December 2016 69,090 (186) 15,478 75,382
Total comprehensive income for the year
Change in fair value of assets classified as
available-for-sale - 800 - 800
Current Tax recognised on fair value gain
on assets classified as available-for-sale - (1534) - (154)
Transfer to retained earnings
{460) 460 -
Profit for the year - - 1,966 1,966
Balance aftributable to equity
sharehelders as at 3F December 2017 60,090 0 17,964 77,994

The notes on pages 23 1o 52 form part of these financial statements
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2017 2016
Note US§'000 Uss'a00

Profit before tax 2,982 685
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 22/23 808 755
Realised loss on disposal of financial assets available for sale 115 185
Impairment of loans and advances 331 702
Unrealised gain on financial assets available for sale 646 1,099

4,882 3.426
Decrease / {increase) in loans and advances fo banks 17,272 (129.445)
{Increase) in loans and advances to customers (5,928) (6.589)
(Increase) in other assets (175) (230)
{Increase) / decrease in prepayments {124) G
(Decrease) / increase in deposits by banks (11,927} 120.378
(Decrease) / increase in customer accounts (1,898) 23,017
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities 788 {99}
{Decrease) / increase in accruals and deferred income (2,083) 1.817
Cash generated from aperations 807 [2.375
Disposal / (acquisition} of financial assets held to maturity 2,085 {2.039)
Acquisition of financial assets available-for-sale (59,143) (40.,996)
Disposal of financtal assets available for sale 63,488 33.105
Income fax paid (421) (104}
Neft eash generated from operating activifies 8,814 2341
Acquisition of tangible and intangible assets (83) (622)
Net cash flow used in investing activities (83) (622)
Dividends paid - .
Net cash flow used in financing activities - -
Net increase in cash and equivalents 8,731 1.719
Cash and cash equivalents at I January 15 8,825 7.106
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 17,556 8.825

-22.




Union Bank UK ple

Annual Report & Financial Statements
31 December 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Reporting entity

Union Bank UK ple (the Bank) is a company incorperated in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006, The
address of the Company’s registered office is given on page 6.

Information concerning the principal activities and operations of the Bank and its regulatory status is set out in the
Directors® Report and in the notes to the financial statements.

2. Basis of presentation

(2) Statement of compliance

The financial stafements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (JASB) and as endorsed by the European Union (EU).
The Bank has also complied with its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs as adopied by the European Union (EU) as
they are no applicable differences between the two frameworks for the periods presented.

The following standards and interprelations which have not been applied in these financial statements were in issue but
not yet effective at the date of authorisation of these financial statenients:

FFRS 9 Financial Instruments, published in Fuly 2014, replaces the existing guidance in TAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the ‘classification and measurement’ of financial
instruments, inchiding a new expected loss model for calculating ‘impairment’ on financial assets and a new general
hedge accounting requirements. Tt also carries guidance on recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments from

IAS 39.

IFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after [ January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The
Bank has not early adopted the requirements of IFRS 9 therefore these financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IAS 39, however, a quantitative impact assessment has been made. The directors have undertaken work
to develop the Bank’s approach to implementation, resources & employee training and specific briefings for the Director’s
and Principal Officers, and this has been completed. TFRS 9 adoption will result in impairment being recognised earlier
than is the case under IAS 39 because it requires expected losses to be recognised before the loss event arises.

Classification and measurement

Classification of financial assets will depend on how these are managed and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
These tactors determine whether the Bank’s financial assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVOCT). This may result in some differences in the population of financial assets measured at
amortised cost or fair value compared with IAS 39. However, based on our assessment of financial assets performed to
date and likely changes to balance sheet composition, the Bank expects that the overall impact of any change will not be
significant. This is because the available-for-sale investments held at the reporting date consist of treasury bills and these
will continue to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in light of the associated business model.

Impairmeni

The measurement of credit losses under TFRS 9 will involve increased complexity and judgement including estimation of
probabilities of default (PD), loss given default (LGD), a range of unbiased future economic scenarios, estimation of
exposure at default and assessing increase in credit risk.

The Bank currently estimates the F2-month and lifetime PD, LGD and exposure at default (EAD) for each loan to
estimaie the expected credit losses (ECL) for its porifolio. This modelling approach forecasts PDs for the remaining
contractual maturity by taking into consideration how borrower-specific and macroeconomic conditions influence their
estimation. Estimates are also generated for LGDs and EADs based on the nature of the collateral held and the credit
exposures as well as incorporating credit risk mitigation activities that the Bank undertakes in its management of credit
risk. The Bank has performed an assessment of the key drivers of risk in its credit exposures and is modelling multiple-
economic scenarios for these.

The Bank has used the general approach that categorises each loan into a ‘3 Stage® impairment model. For credit
exposures where there have not been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, a 12-month ECL is
provided for {Stage 1). For credit exposures where there have been significant increases in credit risk, lifetime ECLs are
provided for (Stages 2 and 3). The Bank assesses significant increases in credit risk using both relative quantitative and
qualitative measures that are commensurate with the nature of the credit exposures at their inception and on an on-geing
basis.

Assets where there has been no significant increase in credit risk will be placed into Stage I and provisions measured
accordingly. The Bank uses a number of both relative quantitative and qualitative measures that are commensurate with
the nature of the credit exposures at their inception and on an on-going basis to determine if there is evidence of

significant increase in credit risk in an exposure.
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As an appropriate backstop measure, under-performing assets that ave 30 days past due will be moved to Stage 2. Once
exposures become 90 days past due, this backstop will be used in conjunction with other qualitative eriteria to determine
that they are non-performing and placed into Stage 3.

Ouantitative impact

Adoption of the requirements of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018 is estimated to decrease total equity within a range of
USEI132k to US$245k. Future refinement to models and assumptions used, changes in counterparties and counterparty
credit quality, in addition to potential management actions, may also impact the impairment of financial instruments.

IFRS 15 Revenue has replaced IAS 18 Revenue and TAS 11 Construction Contracts, It applies to all contracts with
customers except leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts, IFRS 15 establishes the principles that an entity
shall apply to report nseful information to users of financial statements about their nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from a coniract with a customer.

The new revenue standard supersedes all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full retrospective
application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,
and the Bank has adopted the new standard on the required effective date, 1 January 2018.

Following an assessment of the impact of adopting IFRS 15, the Directors have concluded that IFRS 15 will not have a

material impact on the results of the Bank.

IFRS 16 Leases applies to accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and has been endorsed for use by
those entities applying EU TFRSs, Tt requires lessees to bring all leases within its scope on balance sheet, showing an asset
for the right of use and a liability for the discounted amount of future payments. The Directors of the Company believe
there will be no material impact upon initial application of this standard based on the value and terms of lease contracts

that the Bank has entered info as at the reporting date.

(b) Going concern basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the directors continue to be of the opinion that
the Bank has sufficient resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.

In forming this opinion, the directors have had due regard to the latest guidance issued by the Financial Reporting
Council, The assessment enabling the directors to form this opinion has included a wide range of information relating to
present and future conditions, as well as obtaining satisfaction as to the Bank’s own current and prospective capital
adequacy and liquidity and the policies in place to manage and control the risks inherent in the markets in which the

Bank operates.

(c) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revalyation of certain financial
instruments as required under IFRSs.

(d) Functional and presentation currengy

The directors are of the opinon that the functional currency of the Bank is the US Dollar (US$), being the currency in
which the majority of the assets, liabilities and revenues are denominated. Therefore, these financial statements are
expressed in US$ and ali financial information is presented in US$, rounded to the nearest thousand.

(e) Use of estimates and judsement

The Bank makes cerlain estimates and assumptions regarding the future. Estimates and judgemenis arve continually
evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of fisture events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. In the fiture, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assefs and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.
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i.  Loan loss provisioning

UBUK s foan loss impairment provisions are recognised on an incurred loss basis. On its portfolio of loans classitied as
loans and receivables, these loans are carried at amortised cost. In accordance with JAS 39, a loan is considered impaired
when there is objective evidence that events since the foan was granted have adversely affected the amount and timing of
expected cash flows from the loan, The impairment loss is the difference between the carrying value of the loan and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows at the foan’s original effective interest rate. The impairment losses are
recognised as the difference hetween the carrying vatue of the loan and the discounted value of the management’s best
estimate of future cash repayments and proceeds from any security held. The actual amount of the future cash flows and
the date they are received may differ from these estimates and consequently, actual losses incurred may differ fiom those
recognised in these financial statements. More information including carrying values is included in note 19,

At 31 December 2017, impairment allowances held against foans and advances to cusiomers totailed US$0.89m (2016:
U$$0.61m). The net impairment loss {i.e. after recoveries) for loans and advances to customers recognised in 2017 was
USS$0,33m (2016: US$0.37m). In calculating impairment loss allowances, a range of outcomes was calculated, either for
each individual loan or by portfolic taking account of the uncertainty relating to economic conditions. For retaif lending,
the range was based on different management assumptions as to Joss propensity and loss ratio relative to historic
experience, For corporate lending, the range reflects different realisation assumptions in respect of collateral held.

If management had used different assumptions, a targer or smatler impairment loss allowance would have resulted that
could have had a material impact on the UBUK s reported profit before tax. Specifically, if management’s conclusions
were different, but within the range of what management deemed to be reasonably possible, the impairment loss for
loans and advances could have decreased to US$0.31m (2016: US$0.67k), with a consequential increase in profit before
tax, or increased to US$0.35m (2016: US$0.7m) with a consequential decrease in profit before ax.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Interest income and expense

Interest income on financial assets that are classified as toans and receivables, held-to-maturity or available-for-sale and
interest expense on financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income using the effective
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the rafe that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts and
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or lability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the
carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes all fees, transaction costs, and discounts or preminms that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or lability.

Interest on impaired financial assets is caleulated by applying the original effective interest rate of the financial asset to
the canying amount as reduced by any allowance for impairment.

Interest income and expense presented in the statement of comprehensive income include interest on financial assets and
Jiabilities held at amortised cost on an effective interest rate basis.

(b) Fees and commission

Fees and commission are accounted for depending on the services 1o which the income relates as follows:

income earned on the execution of a significant act is recognised in “fees and commission income’ when the acl is
completed (for example, a fee arising from arranging a loan facility);

income earned from the provision of services is recognised in ‘fees and commission income” as the services are
provided (for example, charges made for servicing customer accounts and the provision of trade finance services );
and

income which forms an integral part of the effective interest rate (for exampie, certain loan commitment fees) of a
financial instrument is recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest rate and recorded in ‘Interest income”.
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{c} Foreign currency
A foreign currency transaction is recorded in the functional currency by applying to the foreign currency amaount the spot
exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items ave translated using the closing rate, and resulting
gains and losses on translation are included in the statement of comprehensive inconie.

Exchange profits on foreign exchange transactions with customers ate recorded as income during the period.

(d) Financial instruments

Recognition
The Bank recognises financial assets and financial liabilities in its statement of financial position when it becomes a

parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Management classifies financial assets and [iabilities into the following categories at the time of inifial recognition:

- ‘loans and reccivables’

- “financial assets held-to-maturity’

- “financial assetls available-for-saie”

- ‘financial assets fair value through profit & loss’

- *financial liahilities’

Initial meastrement

When a financial asset or financial Hability is recognised initially, the Bank measures it af its fair value plus (in the case

of a financial asset or financial liability not ai fair value through the statement of comprehensive income) {ransaction
costs thal are directly aftributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assets classified as loans and receivables or as financial assets held to maturity are subsequently measured at

amortised cost. Financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value. Financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost,

Measurement bases

(i) Amortised cost measirement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at
initial recognition, less principal repayments to date, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest rate method, of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, less any
reduction for impairment,

(i) Fair value measurement

The determination of fair values of financial assets and financial [iabilitfes quoted in an active market is based on
observed bid and offer prices for assets and liabilities respectively. For all other financial instruments, fair value is
determined by using valuation techniques, Valuation techniques include comparison to similar instruments for which
market observable prices exist, discounting future cash flows, option pricing and other valuation models and methods
widely used by market participants. As the Bank does not presently use more complex financial instraments, all the
inputs to these valuation models and fechniques are market-observable.

Where the fair value cannot be reliably determined for an investment in an equity instrument, the instrument is measured
at cost,

(e) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinahle paymenfs that are not quoted in an
active market and which are not classified upon initial recognition as available-for-sale or at fair value through the
statement of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, including directly attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured al amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, Jess any impairment losses.

Loans and advances to banks and customers are classified as loans and receivables.
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(fy Held-to-maturity investiments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with {ixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Bank has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity and which are not classified or designated upon
initiaf recognition as at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income.

Held-to-maturity investments are recognised initially at fair value, including directly attributable transaction costs, and
subsequently measured al amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

(g) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are those intended fo be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rales or equily prices.

Available-for-sale financial assels arc recognised on settfement date and are subsequently carried at fair value. Gain:
and losses arising from changes in the fair vafue of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised directly in equity
through other comprehensive income untif the financial assels are derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised through the statement of other comprehensive income is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income, UBUK holds treasury bills and bonds for non-trading purposes which are

classified as available-for-sale.

{h) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss comprise derivatives recognised at fair vaiue with
transaction costs recognised in the slatement of comprehensive income. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised as they occur in the statement of comprehensive income.

(i) Equity and other financial liabilities

The Bank classifies financial instruments that i{ issues as an equity instrument or financial liability in accordance with
the substance of the contractual terms of the instrument. An instrument is classified as equity if it evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Bank after deduction of liabilities. An instrument is ciassified as a liability if it represents a
contractual obligation to deliver cash, or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities on
potentially unfavourable ferms,

Other financial liabilities, not classified as fair value through profit and loss, are initially recognised at fair value,
including directly ativibutable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Deeposits and customer accounts are classified as liabilities, Customer accounts with no activity for two years are moved
to dormant account status and are then held within other liabilities.

Letters of credit are given as security to support the performance of a customer to third parties. As the Bank will only be
required to recognise the exposure of these obligations in the event of the Customer’s default, the cash requirements of
these instruments are expected to be considerably below their nominal amounts.

{j} Impairment of financiaf assets

The Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets, not carried at
fair value through the statement of comprehensive income, is impaired. Financial assets or portfolios of financial assets
are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a foss event has occurted after the initial recognition of the
asset, and that {he loss event has an adverse impact on the amount and/or timing of future cash flows from the asset that

can be estimated reliably.

The Bank considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant
financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. Assets that are not individually significant are then collectively
assessed for impairment by grouping together financial assets (carried at amortised cost) with similar credit risk
characteristics, taking inio account asset type, industry, geographic location, collateral type, past-due status, historical
loss experience and other relevant factors.
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Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial assets and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate.
Losses arc recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
advances or against {he carrying value of held-to-maturity investments as appropriate,

Impairment losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial asscts are recognised directly in
equity through other comprehensive income until the financial assets are derecognised or impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised through the statement of other comprehensive income is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income.

When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through the
stafement of comprehensive income.

{k) Property and equipment

Recognition and measirement
Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost

includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
{major components) of property and equipment.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property or equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part wilt flow to the Bank and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated usefut
lives of each part of an item of property and equipment, Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and their useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Leasehold improvements - Remaining life of lease
Office equipment and furniture - 5 years
Computer hardware - 3 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at the reporting date.

(1) Intangible assets - software
Software acquired by the Bank is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. All
costs have been capitalised in accordance with IAS 38.

Amortisation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (within ‘Depreciation and amortisation’) on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the software, which is assessed annually, from the date that it is
available for use. The estimated useful life of software is three to five years.

(m} Empairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, excluding any deferred {ax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the statcment of comprehensive income.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at cach reporling date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
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determine the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised.

(n} Leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis

over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

{p) Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly through the statement of other comprehensive income, in
which case it is recognised through the statement of other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the tax expected to be payable on the taxable profit for the year, caleulated using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporling date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respeet of previous years. Carrent tax
assets and liabilities are offset when the Bank intends to seltle on a net basis and the legal right to offset exists.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position and the amounts attributed to such assets and liabilities for tax purposes. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax asscts are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utifised.

Deferred tax is caleulafed using the tax rates expected to apply in the perfods in which the assets will be realised or the
liabilities setited, based on tax rates and laws enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date.

(q) Cash and cash cquivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are deemed to comprise cash in hand, cash at
other banks repayable on demand and treasury bills maturing within three months.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position,

(r} Pension costs

The Bank operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the amount charged to the statement of comprehensive
income in rtespect of pension costs and other post-retirement benefits is the contribution payable in the year.
Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown as accruals or
prepayments in the statement of financial position,

4, Segmental reporting
Segmental anafysis of income has not been prepared as, in the opinion of the directors, all of the Bank’s income derives
from one main activity, commercial and retail banking, which is carried out in the United Kingdom.

5. Interest income

2017 2016
USS000 LSS 000
Interest income on securities available-for-sale 728 649
Interest income on loans ard advances 13,347 8.920
14,075 9,569

6. Interest expense
2017 2016
USS 000 US5*000
Interest expense on deposits from banks (1,623) (642)
Interest expense on customer accounts {551) {7035)
(2,174) (1,347}
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7. Fees and commission income

Letters of credit

Funds transfer

Customer account charges
Othets

8. Dealing and exchange profit
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2017 2016
US$°000 L5000
1607 1525
246 328

236 281

- 7

2,089 2,141

Dealing and exchange profit relates to foreign exchange incowe derived from customer facilitation, including
transactions on behalf of the UBN, the revaluation of assets and liabilities denominaied in currencies other than the US

Dollar and the profit / (loss) from the sale of securities.

Loss on Available-for-sale assets
Foreign exchange

9. Other operating expense

Other operating charges and brokerage

10. Administrative expenses

Wages and salaries, including directors
Social security costs

Pension costs

Other staff costs

Total staff costs

Other recurring administrative expenses

2017 2016
US$000 {45 600
(115) (90)
415 751

300 661
2017 2016
US$ 000 USS 04
(138) (77)
2017 2016
USS*000 LSS 000
(4,369) (4,453)
(468) (498}
(375) {393)
(403) (596)
(5,615) (3,9.40)
(4,416) (2.865)
(10,031) (8,805)

Other administrative expenses are incurred in the ordinary course of the Bank’s business and do not inelude any non-

recuring iems,

Average number of employees, including executive directors:
Banking

Operations

Administration

11. Pension costs

2017 2016
No. No.
20 21
17 22

3 4

40 47

The Bank makes contributions to the personal pension funds of employees under Group Personal Pension arrangements.
During the year to 31 December 2017, the Bank made contributions totalling US$ 375,171 {2016: US$ 392,999),

Contributions accrued at the reporting date amounted to US$ nil (2016: US$nif). There were no outstanding pre-

paid contributions at the reporting date.
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12. Directors’ emoluments

2017 2016

US$ 00 Uss 6o

Executive directors’ emohiments (498) {4063)
Non-executive directors’ fees (196) {151)
(694) {G14)

‘The emoluments of the highest paid direcfor, excluding pension coniributions, were US$272,627 (2016 US$216,525).
Pension contributions were made during the year amounting to US$2,686 (2016: US$595). USSnil of benefits in kind

were paid during the year (2016: US$45,473).

Retirement benefits are accruing to one director under Group Personal Pension arrangements (sec Note 11) and another
director under the Union Bank of Nigeria Plc Staff Pension Fund, a defined benefit scheme.

13. Profit / (Loss) before tax

2017 2016
Us§ 600 usg*euo
Profit is stated after charging:
Amounts payable to the Auditor and its associates pursuant to
legislation in respect of:
Statutory Audit of the financial statements {138) (179)
Other services relating to taxation {18) {14}
Rental of premises held under an operating lease {422} (356)
Other operating lease and similar rentals (79} (92}
14. Taxation
Tax on profit on activities in the statement of comprehensive income:
(e) Analysis of tax charge on activifies
2017 2016
USS 000 LISS*004
Current fax:
United Kingdom corporation tax bascd on the (profit) / loss for the year {696) (67)
Adjustment in respect of prior year (170) (3}
Exchange differences - 29
Total current tax (86G) (41)
Deferred tax:
Timing differences, crigination and reversal 90 (£37)
Prior year deferred tax adjustment (249) -
Change in tax rate 9 ()
Total deferred tax {150) (145)
Tax (charge) / credit on profit (1,616) (186)
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14, Taxation {continued)

(b} Reconciliation of the fotal tax charge

2017 2086
US$060 ES5000
Profit / (Loss) on activities before tax 2982 685
Tax at 19.25% (2016: 20%) thereon (574) (137)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4) {78)
Exchange differences - 29
Difference on standard tax rate 27 2)
Adjustments in respect of prior year (170) (3}
Adjustments in respect of deferred tax prior year {246) -
Income not taxable for tax purpose 5 3
‘Tax (charge) / credit (1,018) (186}

Current tax of $ 573,904 has been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the year.

The UK corporation tax rate was reduced from 20% to 19% with effect from | Aprif 2017, This has resulted in the
effective overall tax rate being 19.25% for the current financial year.

(¢) Analysis of deferred tax assets / (liabilities)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax assets recognised by the Bank:

2017 2016

Uss’ 000 USS* 081

Brought forward 7 i52
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 23 {143)
Short term timing differences 113 -
143 7

(d) Factors that may affect future tax charges

The tax rate on the profit before tax for the Company’s UK acfivities for 2016 was 20% (2015:20.25%). Finance Act
2016, which was substantially enacted in September 2016, included provisions to reduce (he rate of corporation tax to
1'7% with effect from 1 April 2020, and Finance Act {No. 2) included pravisions to reduce the rate of corporation tax
to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. To the extent that deferred tax reverses at a different rate than it is recognised
at, then this will change the impact of the net deferred tax liability.
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The table below sets out the Bank’s classification of each class of financial asset and liahility as at 31% December 2017

USS 006

Cash at bank and in hand
Financial assets available-for-sale
Loans and advances to banks

Loans and advances to
customers

Deposits by banks
Customer accouts

Other liabilities

USS'600

Cash at bank and i hand
Financial assets - derivatives
Financiat assets availablc-for-sale
Financial assets held o maturity
[.oans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Leposits by banks

Customer accounts

Financial liabilities - derivatives

Other ligbilitics

16. Cash at bank and in hand

Cash

Note

20

25
26
27

Note

27

Shert term placements with other banks

Cash is classified as a level | instrument.

Held at
fair
value

31,190

Held at
fair
value

L
e
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Held to
maturity

Held fo
maturity

Loans and Financial Total
receivables linbikities at
amortised cost
17,556 - 17,556
- - 31,190
313,668 - 313,668
69,829 - 69,829
- 270,095 270,095
- 83,656 83,656
- 2,420 2,420
Loans and Financial Total
receivables liakilities at
amaortised cost
8,825 - 8,825
- - 34
- - 37,532
- - 2,085
330,940 . 330,946
64.182 - 64,182
- 282,022 282,022
- 85,354 85,554
- - 34
- 1,397 1,597
2017 20106
USS 00 LS00
133 85
17,423 8,740
17,556 8,825
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17. Financial assets available-for-sale

2017 26
US$'006 LSS 640
Finaucial assets available-for-sale at fair value
Treasury bills 31,190 30,631
Government bonds - 6,901
Bank bonds - B
31,196 37,532
Interest inciuded in above
Government bonds - 113
Maturity - 14.984
- 3 months or less
- I year or fess but over 3 months 17,668 15.647
« 5 years or less but over 1 year 13,522 -
- Over 5 years - 6.901
31,190 37.532

All amounts included above relate to interest on treasury bills and bonds.

The Bank measures fair values using the fair vaiue hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making the
measurements. The financial assets of the Bauk falf within the category of Level 1 where valuation is based upon quoted
prices in an active market for the same or identical instument. Unrealised Profit of US$645,673 (2016; Unrealised profit of
US$1,099,102) have been recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Financial assets available-for-sale
purchased and sold amounted to US$59,145,000 (2016: US§ 40,996,000 ) and 1US$65,488.000 (2016:U$533,105,000)

respectively

18. Financial assets held-to-matority

2017 2016
US$060 LSS0
Financial assets held-to-maturity
Bank bonds - 2,085
- 2,085
Interest included m above
Bank bonds . 44
Maturity
- 3 months or less -
- 1 year or fess but over 3 months - N
- 5 years or less but over T year - 2083
- Over § years “
- 2,085

The Bank no onger holds held-to-maturity bonds.
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19. Loans and advances fo banks

The following table shows total bank loans

2017 2016
USs$'000 LSS0
Gross  Impairment Net Gross  Impuirment Net
amount Allowance amount Amaount allowance Ao
Bank leoans 313,668 - 313,668 331.269 (329) 330,940
313,668 - 313,668 331.269 {329) 330,940

‘The fair value of the cash collateral held in respect of the loans and advances to banks at 31 December 2017 is
US$18.814,331 (2016: 178$2,963,316). This collateral can be used in the cvent of default by the borrower.

2017 2016

TUS$060 1SS (00

Up to | month 7.886 1,160
1 to 3 months 7,548 8.505
15,434 9,665

The following table shows the remaining maturity of the loans and advances to banks:

2017 216
US$000 LIS a00
Performing Impaired Total Performing  Fmpaired Total
Repayable on demand or at
short notice 94 - 94 91 g1
Remaining malurity: -
- 3 months or less excluding
above 313.574 - 313,574 330,849 329 331,178
- | year or less but over 3 -
months - - - - -
Less: Allowances for -
impairment {note 21) - (329) (329)
313,668 - 313,668 330,940 - 330940

Amounts repayable on demand or at short notice inctude monies pledged to banks in respect of trade finance
transactions of US$94,000 (2016: US$ 91,000).
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20, Loans and advances to customers

2017 2076
US$ 000 LSS HI

Gross  Impairment Net Gross  [mpairment Net

amount allowance  amount amount allowance  amount

Commercial loans & advances 36,370 {784} 35,586 28,446 {301) 28,145
Personal toans & advances 263 (19) 244 3,587 (17 3,570
Syndicated loans 34,087 (88) 33,999 32,7539 (292) 32,467
70,720 891) 09,829 64,792 (6141 64,182

The fair vatue of the collateral held in respect of the loans and advances to customers is US$61,702,589 as at 31
December 2017 (2016: US$63,454,840). This collateral can be used in the event of defanlt by the borrower. (2016:
US$nil). No interest earned on impaired assels has been credited to the statement of comprehensive income during the
year. Out of the total collateral, USS$nil is for impaired loans and advances to customers (2016: US$nil} and US$nil
{(2016: USEnil} is for loans and advances to customers that are past due, but not impaired.

The following table shows the remaining maturity of the loans and advances to custemers:

2017 2086
US$ 0040 LSS0

Performing  TImpaired Total Performing  [mpaired Taotal
Repayable on demand or al 34,282 ) 23841 53 23894
short notice
Remaining maturity: -
- 3 months or less excluding
above 10,489 - 10,489 66 - 64
- 1 year or less but over 3
months 2,420 - 2,420 i34 - 134
- 5 years or less but over | year 20,368 - 20,368 27469 - 27,469
- Over 5 years 3,161 - 3,161 13.229 - 13,229
Less: Allowances for
impatrment {note 21) {208) (683) (801} (357) (33) (o1

70,512 {683) 69,829 64,182 - 64,182

Of the US$891,340 impairment provision (2016: US$610,000), US$208,700 represents the collective impairment
provision (2016: US$557,000),

21. Net impairment loss for loans and advances to customers & banks

2017 2016

Us$* 000 US040

At beginning of the year (939 (248)
Write back to statement of comprehensive income 329 -
Charge to statement of compzehensive income (331) (7G2)
Exchange differences 3) 11
Amounts written off against historic provisions 53 0
At the end of the year (851) (939)
foans and advances to banks - (329
Loans and advances to customers (891) (610}
(891) (939)
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During the year, the Bank has written off loans and advances to customers amounting to US$$53,000 (2016: US$0}.
These were fully provided during the year.

The carrying amount of the loans and advances to customers in default at the end of the reporting peried is US$nil

(2016: US$nil).

22. Property and equipment

2017
Leasehold Qffice Motor Total
improvements Equipment Vehicles
US$040 and Furniture
& Coemputer
Hardware
Cost:
At beginning of the year 276 671 947
Additions 2 9 - 11
Assets disposed off - (14) - {14}
At end of the year 278 666 - 944
Depreciation;
At beginning of the year (10 (242) - {252)
Charge for the year (42) (la1) - (203)
Disposals - 14 - 4
At end of the year {52) (389) - (441)
Net book value at 31" December 2017 226 277 - 503
2016
Leaschold Office Motor Tatal
Improvements Equipment Vehicles
1SS 000 ad Furniture
& Computer
Hardware
Cost:
Al beginning of the vear £.050 1,093 G 2.244
Additions 276 183 - 439
Assels disposed off (1.650) {607 (99) (1.756)
At end of the year 276 671 - 947
Depreciation:
At beginning of the year (1.050) {741 (99) {1,890}
Charge for the year (10) (108) - (118)
Disposal 1030 607 99 1,756
Atend of the year (10} {242) - (252)
Net book value at 31 December 2016 266 429 - 693
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23. Intangible assets

2017 2080
Seftware Software
US$ 000 LS80
Cost:
At beginning of the year 3,301 5,450
Additions 72 163
Assel disposed off (95) (2.312)
At end of the year 3,278 3,301
Amortisation:
At beginning of'the year {1,613) (3.288)
Disposals 95 2312
Charge for the year {605) (637)
At end of the year (2,123) {1,613)
Net book value at 31 Decemher 1,155 1,688
24, Other Assets
2017 20146
US$000 LSS
Within twelve months:
Fees and Commissions receivable 114 106
Other receivables 711 585
More than twelve months:
Rent and other securily deposits 521 474
1,346 1,165
25, Deposits by banks
2017 2016
US§ 000 LES000
Repayable on demand 146,414 173.377
Remaining maturity:
- 3 months or less excluding above 123,681 143.910
-1 year or less but over 3 months - 4.735
270,095 282,022

Deposits by banks include amounts totalling US$42,563,000 (2016 1S$21,590,000) charged to the Bank to secure actual
and contingent liabilitics in respect of letters of credit.
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2017 2016

USs 000 Us5000

Repayable on demand 65,590 70.878
Remaining maturity:

- 3 months or less excluding above 10,405 4,242

- 1 year or less but over 3 months 7371 9,994

- 5 years or less but over 1 year 284 440

83,656 85,554

Customer accounts include amounts totalling 175$36,079 (2016: US$1,055,715) charged to the Bank to secure actual and

contingent liabilities in respect of letters of credit,

27. Other liabitities

2017 2016
US$060 EERSHHH
Within twelve months:
Taxation and social security 142 177
Accounts payable 1,688 881
More than twelve months:
Customers” unclaimed balances 732 716
2,562 1,774
28. Accruals and deferred income
2017 206
US8$'060 HSS' 0080
Accruals 230 2.230
Deferred income 379 339
609 2,769
29, Called up share capital
2017 2016
Authorised, Allotted, called up and fully paid USs$’600 LiS$ 000
50,000 deferred shares of £1 each 90 90
60,000,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each 60,000 60,000
60,090 60,090

The ordinary shares comprise a single class and each have the same voting rights as well as rights to dividends and

distributions. The deferred shares carry no entitlement to vote or receive distribulions.
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30. Related party transactions

During the year, the Bank undertook transactions with Union Bank of Nigeria Plc and its subsidiaries (the UBN Group)
in the normal course of business. These include loans and deposits and forcign currency transactions and the associated
interest income and expenses. Loans and advances to banks are cash secured to a maximum of US§18.7m (2016:
US$2.8m). Balances and related income and expense included in these financial statements in respect of the

transactions with UBN Group are as follows:

2017 2016

US$000 Closing balance Clasing halance
Holding company
Assels
Cash at bark and in hand 0.6 0.2
Loans and advances to banks 23,216 [7.198
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 46,246 26,705
Income — interest
From holding company 851 822
Expense - interesi

177 34

To holding company

Fellow subsidiaries
Liabilities

Deposits by banks
Castomer accounts
Income

From fellow subsidiaries

At 31 December 2017 loans made to two {2016: two) executive directors of the Bank during the year, on terms generally
available to staff, remained cutstanding to the amount of US$38,048 (2016: US$44,158). This balance is included
within note 20. More information regarding key management compensation is included within note 12.

31. Financial risk management

(a} Risk management
The Bank holds and issues financial insiruments for the purposes of:

- earning inferest margins, fees and commission;

- financing its operations; and

- managing the inlerest rate and currency risks inherent in its operations,
The Bank does not actively trade in financial insttuments and, therefore, does not have a trading book. Its operations are
financed from a mixture of equitly and deposits. Deposits are raised primarily in US Doflars and to a lesser extent
Sterling and euros at both fixed and variable rates and lending is similarly distributed. Longer term lending is partly
financed by capital but is otherwise generally maiched to deposits both in terms of maturity and re-pricing,
The Bank’s functional currency is the US Dollar. It does not actively speculate in foreign currencies and the majority of
its foreign exchange transactions are carried out in the spot market for customer facilitation purposes. Forward foreign
exchange transactions are undertaken for the purposes of hedging the US$ value of the Bank's estimated Sterling
EXPENSes.
The main risks arising from the Bank’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risi and foreign
currency risk. Management has developed policies for managing each of these risks, which are reviewed and approved
by the Board on an annual basis. Significant features of these policies are summarised below.
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31. Financial risk management (continued}

(b} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty is unable or unwilling to meet 2 commitment that it has entered into
with the Bank and arises mainly from lending and trade finance activities. To mitigate this risk, the Bank has adopted
policics that minimise significant unsecured credit exposures other than to financial institutions and to avoid
concentrations of unsecured credit risk to counterparty groups, indusiry sectors and countries, which do not camy
investment grade credit ratings. All credit exposures are subject to continuous assessment by the Assets & Liabilities
Committee and the Risk & Board Risk Committee. It is the policy of the Bank to make adequate impairment aflowances
where real or probable problems in asset recovery are identified and to make adequate collective impairment allowances
for those as yet unidentified credit problems that are inherent in any portfolio of banking assets. Details of impairment
allowances are summatised in Notes 19 to 21,

(i) Age analvsis of past due but not impairved assels
Impairment assessment takes into account known recoveries after the reporting date in respect of assets past due at that
date as well as collateraf held in the form of cash and property and chattel mortgages, The table below shows the age

analysis of past due but not impaired assets together with collateral held.

2017 2016
US$000 LSS 060
Gross  Collateral Net Gross  Collateral Net
amount arount
Within 3 months 7.886 7.886 - L.160 1,160 -
Over 3 months 7,548 7,548 8.5035 §.303
15,434 15,434 - 9.665 9,665 -
(it} Credit exposure by sector
2017 2016
85000 LS5an
Banks 331,092 341,766
Government 31,190 37.532
Corporate 62,483 58,048
Individuals 7,345 6835
432,110 443 481
(i) Credit exposure by location
2017 2016
Us$’oeo 857600
Europe 170,286 246,960
Africa 81,296 86,118
Others (mainly UAE, India, US, Japan) 180,528 110,403 |
432,110 443,481 |

The above sector and geographical analyses only include cash at bank and in hand, loans and advances to banks and to
customers, financial assets available-for-sale, financial assets held to maturity and financial assets - derivatives.

The Bank has established procedures to manage country risk. During the year there continued to be periods of
significant volatility in the emerging bond markets which are closely monitored and valued daily. The Bank also carries
out country eredit reviews of emerging markets and thereby assesses any potential creditworthiness issues.
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31. Financial risk managermnent (continued)

(v} Credit exposure by Credit Quality Step

The Bank extends credit facilities to quality rated and unrated counterparties. An analysis of the credit quatity of the
maximum credit exposure based on ratings provided by Moody and Fitch rating pgencies where applicable grouped by
Credit Quality Steps (CQS) is as follows:

2017 20106
CQs Assefs US$400s LSS (00,
Cash and Cash Equivalent
1 Rated AAA to AA- 14 38
2 Rated (o A+ to A- 636 5.070
3 Rated BBB+ to BBB- 16,483 3.051
4 Rated BB+ to BB- 290 -
5 Rated B+ to B- [ -
6 Unrated - .
17,424 8,739
Financial assets derivatives
1 Rated AAA to AA- - -
Loans and Advances fo Banks
1 Rated AAA to AA- - -
2 Rated A+ to A- 130,109 210.187
3 Rated BBB+ to BBB- 151,933 103.481
4 Rated BB+ to BB- - -
5 Rated B+ to B- 31,626 17,272
6 Unrated - -
313,668 336,940
Loans and Advances to Customers
Unrated neither past due nor impaired 69,829 64,182
Unrated past due but not impaired
69,829 64,182
Financial Assets Available-for-sale
Related AAA to AA- 31,190 30.632
Related B+ to B- - ¢.960
6 Unrated - -
31,190 37,532
Financial Assets Held-to-Maturity
1 Related B+ to B- - 2.085
- 2,085
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s maximum exposure to credit is US$452m (2016: US$464m), of which USS$
683,000 (2016; US$ 382,000m) was deemed fo be impaired or doubtfil. These amouats include all financial assets and
undrawn irrevocable loan and trade commitments, The Bank held collateral totalling US$96m (2016: US$85m) against
credit exposures of US$402m (2016: US$101m) of which US$35.5m (2016; US$21.8m) was in the form of cash. Total
trade related exposure included above was US$44.2m (2016: US$32.7m) against which the Banl held cash collateral of
US$36.6m (2016: US$21.7m) included above.

Loans are considered forborne when terms and conditions of a loan are modified due a borrower being unable {0 meet
current terms and conditions due {o factors indicating financial difficulty. Examples may include reducing interest
rates, delaying payment of principal and amending or not enforcing covenants.

Lending subject to forbearance, net of credit risk mitigation, as at 31 December 2017 ts US$15m (2016: US$12.5m).

(c) Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank is not able to meet its commitments to customers and counterparties as they fafl
due as a result of mismateh in cash flows arising from Habilities and assets. To mitigate this risk, the liquidity structure
of assels, liabilities and commibments is managed so that resultant cash flows are appropriately batanced, within
approved limits and mismatch parameters set by the PRA, to ensure that all obligations can be met when due. Generally,
it is the policy of the Bank to match the currency and maturity of all Habilities and assets as far as practicable and to
maintain a store of liquidity in the form of readily realisable debt securities, including government treasury bills, Also,
whete possible, the Bank enters into deposit netling agreements with those banks with which it makes placements in
order to retain access to funds at short notice.

The following table sets out the contractual maturities (representing undiscounted contractual cash-flows) of financial
liahilities. All amounts within deposits by banks and customer accounts include both principal and future interest

payments:

2017
US$'000 Time band Total
Less than 3 3-6 612 1-5 Over 5
Months months months YeRrs years
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 270,095 - - - - 270,093
Customer accounts 75,994 715 6,662 286 83,657
Other liabilities 3,315 - - - - 3,315
‘Fotal liabilities 349,404 715 6,602 286 - 357,067
206
UsSNa0a Time band Total
Less than 30 G- 12 -5 Over 5
3 months nonils yeirrs VERrs
Months
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 277,287 - - 4,735 - 282,022
Customer accounls 75.121 5.209 4,784 440 85,554
Other liabilities 4.543 - - - - 4.543
Total liabilities 356,951 5,209 4,784 5,175 - 372,119

-43 -




Union Bank UK pic
Annual Report & Financial Stafements
31 December 2017

31. Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss arising from differcnces in the re-pricing dates of liabilities and assets. The Bank’s
policy is to limit re-pricing risk by setting re-pricing gap limits and by vegularly reviewing its re-pricing risk by
reference fo assumed adverse movements in interest rates to ensure that the risk of loss remains within acceptable limits.
Therefore, the Bank’s treasury and lending functions seek 10 price assets at floating rates or at fixed rates for fixed
periods at appropriate roll-over dates that allow for matching with customer and market Habilities.

The table befow summarises the Bank’s assets and liabilities by re-pricing time band and demonstrates the extent to
which these are matched, save in respect of equity, which are presently invested short term.

(i) Interest rate gap analysis
Assets and liabilities are analysed in time bands according to the earlier of the period to the next interest rate re-pricing
and maturity date as follows;

2017
US$000 Time band Total
Less than Non-
3 3-6 612 1-5 Over § interest
Montis months months years years bearing
Total Financial assets 364,648 19,153 11,419 33,726 3,151 13 432,110
Total Finaneial liabilities 346,089 715 6,662 285 - - (353,751)
Interest rate sensitivity gap 18,559 18,438 4,157 33,441 3,151 i3 78,359
Cumulative gap 18,559 36,997 41,754 75,195 78,346
2016
US&004 Time band Taotat
Less than Non-
3 3-6 612 1-5 Over 5 interest
Months months months years Vears bearing
‘Total Financial assets 378.282 4,562 11,309 20233 200043 29 443479
Total Financtal liabilities 352406 5.209 4,784 5.176 - - {307.573)
lnterest rate sensitivity gap 25876 (647) 6,524 24,078 20,043 29 73,904
Cunntative gap 25,876 215,229 31,753 55,831 75,873
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(ii}  Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Intercst rate sensitivity analysis has been performed on. the net cash flow interest rate risk exposures as at the reporting
dates. A range of possible upward/downward movements in Libor/Euribor of 100bps has been assumed for the
different currencies which the directors consider reasonable given the current market conditions and the nature of
matched funding within the exposures. If all other variables are held constant, the tables below present the likely
impact on the Bank’s statement of comprehensive income:

2017

US$a00 Currencies Total

US Dollar £ Sterling Euro Other
Total Financial assets 394,157 31,727 5,310 9216 432,110
Less: fixed rate assets (307,825) (23,229) - - (331,654)
Total Variable rafe assets 86,332 8,498 5,310 216 101,056
Tolal Financial liabilities 319,922 27,531 5,396 902 353,751
Less: fixed rate liabilities (107,100} (8,810) - - {115,910}
Total Variable rate fnbilities 212,822 18,721 5,396 902 237,841
Net cash flow inferest Rate Risk exposure (126,490 (10,223) (80) 14 (136,785)
Possible movement in Libor/Euribor {bps) 100 100 100 100
Possible impact of increase in Libor/Euriber on
profitfloss before tax and equity (1,265) {102) (1} - (1,368)
‘Fax charge-20% 243 20 - - 263
Possible impact of increase in Libor/Euribor on
profit/loss after tax and equity {1,021) (83) (1} - {1,105)
Possible impact of decrease in Libor/Euribor
on profit/loss before tax and equity 1,265 102 1 - 1,368
Tax charge-21.5% (243) 20 - - (263)
Possible impact of decrease in Libor/Eunibor
on profit/loss after tax and equity 1021 83 1 - 1,105

.45 -




31. Financial risk management (continued)

Union Bank UK ple
Annual Report & Financial Statements

31 December 2017

2046

LS5 000 Curvencies Total

LS Dollar £ Sterling, Euro Other
Total Financial assets 415,030 24,514 3.494 442 443,479
Less: fixed rate assels (115,598) (l.461) - (117,059
Total Variahle rate asserts 299 434 23,053 3,494 442 326,422
Total Financial liabilities 338.617 24.575 3,961 422 367,575
Less fixed rae Habidites {109.070) 6.696 - (142,375)
Tutal Viriahle rafe lahilivies 129,547 31,270 3.961 422 265,200
Net cash flow fnterest Rate Risle exposure 69,887 (8,218) (467) 26 01,222
Possible movement in Libor/Furibor (bps) 100 100 100 100
Possibte impacl of increase in Libor/Iuribor on
profivioss before tax and cquiny 699 (82} (5) - 612
Tax charge-21.25% {140) 16 [ - (122}
Possible impact of increase in Libor/Eusibor on
profit/loss afler tax and equity 3539 (66) (4) - 496G
Possible impact of decrease in Libor/Euribor on
profivloss before tax and equity {699) 82 5 - (612)
Tax charge-21 3% 140 (16) 13 - 123
Possible impact of decrease in Libor/Euribor on )
profit/loss after tax and equity (559} 66 4 - (490)

(e) Currency risk

Limited foreign exchange exposure arises from the facilitation of customer orders and from profits and losses in
cwrrencies other than the functional currency. The Bank does not actively speculate in foreign currencies and does not
deal in forward foreign exchange, foreign exchange options, futures or options thereon except to the limited extent
necessary to hedge cash flows arising from its own and its customers’ activities. Foreign exchange exposures are subject

to limits as to pesitions in individual currencies and as to the *overall net open position®,

Details of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by currency of denomination are summarised in US Dollars in table (7} below
so as to demonstrate the extent to which foreign currency exposures are matched.

(i) Nef eyrrency position analysis

Assets and lisbilities, expressed in US$ but analysed according to the currency in which they were denominated, after
taking into account the accounting policy for foreign currencies as set out in Note 3(c), were as follows:

2017
USE400 Currencies Total
US Dollar £ Sterfing Euro Other
Total Financial assets 394,212 31,656 5,325 916 432,110
Total Financial liabilities {319,921} (27,531) (5,396) (904) (353,752)
Currency position 74,291 4,125 (71) 12 78,358
2016
ESSH00 Currencics Total
TS Dotkar £ Sterling Euro Other
Tolal Financial assets 415,030 24 514 3.494 442 443,479
Total Financial iiahilitics {338.617) (24.575) {3.961) (422) (367,575)
Currency position 76,413 {61) (467) ) 75,904
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31. Financial risk management {continued)

(i} Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been performed on the foreign currency exposures inherent in the
Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities at the reporting dates. The sensitivity analysis provides an
indication of the impact on the Bank’s statement of comprehensive income of reasonably possible changes in
the currency exposures embedded within the functional currency environment in which the Bank operates.
Reasonably possible changes are based on an analysis of historical currency volatility, together with any
relevant assumptions regarding near-ferm future volatility.

The Bank believes that for each foreign cwrrency net exposure it is reasonable {o assume a 5%
appreciation/depreciation against the Bank’s functional currency, given the control exercised over the Bank’s
currency positions. If afl other variables are held constant, the tabies below present the impacts on the Bank’s
statement of comprehensive income if these currency movements had occurred.

2017
US$ 000 Currencies {FC)
£ Sterling Eurg Other
Nel foreign currency exposures 4,126 (70 14
Tmpact on profit and equity of 5% increase in FC:USD rate 206 {4) 1
Impact on profit and equity of 5% decrease in FC:USD rate (206) 4 (1)
2016
LIRS I Currencies (IFC)
£ Sterling Eure Other
Nel foreign currency expostres (6F) (467) 20
Impact on profit and equity of 3% increase i FC:USID rate (3) (23) i
Tmpact on profit and equity of 3% decrease in FCUSD rate 3 23 (1)
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

(f} Capital adequacy

The Bank is subject to minimem capital requirements imposed by the PRA, following guidelines developed by the
Bascl Commiilee on Banking Supervision and implemented in the UK via European Union Directives. The revised
framework, known as CRDIV, includes a more risk-sensitive methodology for the calculation of capital requirements
for Credit Risk as well as a capital requirement for Operational Risk.

Minimum capital requivements under the PRA’s rules are caleulated by summing the capital requirements for Credit
Risk, Operational Risk, Market Risk and Counterparty Credit Risk. For the purposes of computing these requirements
the Bank has elected to adopt the Standardised Approach to Credit Risk and the Basic Indicator Approach to
Operational Risk. Market Risk is determined using the standard Position Risk Requirement (PRR) rules and
Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) is cafculated using the CCR mark to market method. The Market Risk and
Counterparty Credit Risk components of the capital requirement are small because the Bank has no trading book.

The minimum capital requirement for Credit Risk under Pillar 1 of CRDIV is calculated by multiplying risk weighted
assels by 8%, the internationally agreed minimum raiio. Risk weighted assels are determined by applying risk weights,
which vary according to the credit rating of the obligor, to the Bank’s assets, including ofT statement of finaneial
position engagements that are subject also to given credit risk conversion factors. Under Pillar 2 the Bank undettakes an
assessment (the ICAAP process) of the amount of capital that is required to support its activities nsing the Pillar I plus
approach. This assessment has identified a number of risks that either do not atiract capital under Pillar [ or where the
Pillar 1 requirement does not fully capture the risks faced by the Bank, Additional capital is set aside under Pillar 2 for
these risks, which include exposure concentrations and interest rate risk in the non-trading book. The Bank’s total
capital requirement is then the sum of the amounts calculated under Pillar 1 and Pilfar 2. Furthermore, the Bank is
subject to Individual Capital Guidance (ICG) provided by the PRA whereby the Pillar 2 requirement is computed by
applying a formula to the Pillar T requirement. This results in a Pillar 2 requirement that is somewhat higher than that
determined through the ICAAP process,

The Bank calculates its capital adequacy ont a daily basis by comparing the fotal capital requirement in accordance with
the [CG to capital available o meet this requirement (Regulatory Capital). A capital buffer is also incotporated, which
is based on a level of tolerance fo unexpected losses that is considered and agreed by the Board as part of the ICAAD
process. At 31 December 2017 and throughout the year, the Bank maintained Regulatory Capital in excess of the total
capital requirement calcutated in accordance with the 1CG.,

The following table is an analysis of those items which comprise the Regulatory Capital base for the purposes of
reporting to the PRA.

2017 2016
US$*060 LSS0

Statement of financial position:
Share Capital 60,090 60,09
Profit & 1.oss Reserve 17,904 15,478
Less Intangibles (1,155) {1,088)
Available-for-sale Reserves - {180)
Total Tier 1 Capital 76,839 73,694
Tier 2 Capital - Collective impairment allowance 209 557
Total Tier 2 Capital 209 587
Total Regulatory Capital 77,048 74,251

The Regulatory Capital shown above differs from that reported to the PRA because retained profits cannot be included
uatil such time as the Financial Statements for the relevant period have been audited and approved.

The directors regard share capital and reserves as its capital for the capital managemen( purposes where the objective to
ensure it is sufficient to participate in lines of business and to meet Prudential Regulatory Authority’s capital
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may issue new shares or sell assefs.
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31. Financial risk management (continued)

2017 2016

(g} Lending commitments
US$*006 LSS 300

Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments to lend:
Confract amount

Credit equivalent amount .
Risk weighted amount -

32. Fair values of financial ins{rumen{s

Fair value measurements

The information set out below provides information about how the Bank determines fair values of various financial
assels and financial liabilities. The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hicrarchy, which reflects
the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

Level | — fair value measurements derived from queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilitics.

Level 2 — fair value measurements derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liabikity, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — fair value measurements derived from unobservable inputs to the extent that relevant observable inputs are
not available, thereby atlowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the assct or liability.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subseqguent to initial recognition at
fair value, grouped into Levels 1 1o 3 based on the degree to which the fair vatue is observable:

US$'000
2017
Level T Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets available-for-sale 31,190 - - 31,190
Financial assets - derivatives - - - -
Financial liabilities - derivatives - - - -
Total 31,196 n - 31,198
US§0id 206
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assels available-lor-sale 37,532 - - 37,532
Financiat assets - derivatlives - - - -
Financial Habilities - derivatives - - - -
Total 37,532 - - 37532

The Bank no longer holds held-to-maturity bonds.
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32. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and compares them to
carrying value,

2017 2016
Carrying  Fair Value Carrying  Fair Value
Value Value
USS 600 US§*000 USS™ U TS5 a1

Assets
Cash at bank 17,423 17,423 8,740 8.740
Loans and advances to banks 313,668 313,668 330.939 330.939
Loans and advances to customers 69,829 70,055 64,182 64.347
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 270,095 270,095 282.022 284,497
Customer accounts 83,656 83,674 85.554 85,900
Other habilities 3,170 3,170 4.543 4.543

The fair value of financial instruments is the estimated price at which an orderly transaction to sell the assel or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participanis at the measurement date under current market
conditions. If a quoted marke! price is available for an instrument, the fair value is caleulated based on the market price.
Where quoted market prices are not available, fair value is determined using pricing models which use a mathematical
methodology based on accepted financial theories, depending on the product type and its components.

Cash at bank consists of demand deposits with third party banks, Accordingly, the carrying amount of these balances is
deemed an appropriate approximation of the fair value.

Both loans and advances fo banks and customers noted above are level 3 financial assets. Loans and advances (o banks
comprise secured loans, short-term placements with banks including coltateral and unsettled financial transactions. The
secured loans have been valued as above and using the valuation technique described below. The carrying amount of
the other items is deemed a reasonable approximation of their fair value, as the transactions are very short-term in

durafion. This includes intercompany balances.

The fair valuation of loans and advances to customers is an #rea of considerable estimation and uncertainty as there is
no observable market and values are significantly affected by customer behaviour, These comprise secured foans,

unsecured loans and corporate loans.

The fair values of mortgage portfolios have been estimated by comparing existing contractual interest rates over the
weighted average lives with an estimation of new business interest rates based on competitor market information.

Adjustments have also been made to reduce:

- the weighted average lives fo reflect the uncertainty inkerent in the vatue that eould be achieved, given that the
borrower could re-finance at any time;

- discount the value of performing loans with a higher loan-to-value ratio to reflect the higher risk of this part of
the portfolio and the fact that this is outside the Company’s normal underwriting standards; and

- discount the collateral value of non-performing foans with a higher loan-to-value ratio to reflect the
significantly higher possibility of re-possession and the lower value that is achieved on repossession and to
take cognisance of rates available in the market for loans in arrears but with a lower loan-to-value ratio.

Unsecured loans are overdrafts and personal leans. The weighted average lives of these portfolios are short, and the
business was written relatively recently. As a resull, contractual interest rates approximate new business interest rates,
and therefore no mark-to-market surplus or deficit has heen recorded with respect to the performing book and discounts

applied to the non-performing book.

-50-




Union Bank UK ple
Annual Report & Financial Statements
31 December 2017

32. Fair values of financial instruments (continued)

The fair values of corporate loans have been estimated by comparing existing margins with an estimation of new
business rates for similar loans in terms of the borrower’s segment, maturily and steucture. Provisions are considered
appropriate for the book that is not impaired. A discount has been applied to impaired loans as although exits have
generally been achieved at carrying value, this does not reflect the discount a purchaser would require.

All financial liabilities are level 3 liabilities, The majority of deposit by banks, customer accounts and other liabilities
are payable on demand and therefore can be deemed short-term in nature with the fair value equal (o the carrying value.
Certain of the customer accounts are at a fixed rate until maturity. The deficit/suplus of fair value over carrying value
of these Habilitics has been estimated by reference to the market rates available at the reporting date for similar
customer accoumts of similar maturities. The fair value of such customer accounts has been estimated using the

valuation technique described below.

In the valuation of loans and advances and deposits, the *present value’ method is used. Expected future cash flows are
discounted using the interest rate curves of the applicable currencies. The interest rates curves are generally observable
market data and reference yield curves derived from quoted interest rates in appropriate time bandings, which match the
timings of the cash flows and maturities of the instruments.

33. Contingent liabilities and commitments

{a) Contingent liabifities

2017 206

US$000 LSS 00

Letters of credit 20,264 19.751
Guarantees given to third parties - "
Undrawn facilities - -
20,264 19.731

(8) Operating leases
The Company had annual commitments in respect of operating leases for fand and buildings and equipment used in the
buginess ag follows.

2017 2016

Leases which expire: US$*000 LS04
Within one year 56 62
Within two to five years 24 31
80 93

34. Dividends
No dividend payment was made during the year ended 31 December 2017 in respect of the year ended 31 December

2016 (made during the year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of the year ended 3} December 2015: US§nil}),
The directors propose a final dividend of 1J$$3,000,000 in respect of year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: US$ nil).
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35, Ultimate parent company and controlling party

The Bank is a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of its parent and ultimate holding undertaking, Union Bank of Nigeria
Plc, a company incorporated in Nigeria and listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The smallest and largest group in
which the Bank is consolidated is Union Bank of Nigeria Ple. The directors do not consider there to be an ultimate
controlling party.

Copies of the Group financial statements of Union Bank of Nigeria Plc can be obtained from:

Corporate Affairs Department

Union Bank of Nigeria Plc

Stallion Plaza

36, Marina, Lagos

Nigeria

36, Subsequent events

‘There are no material adjusting or non-adjusting events after the reporting date.
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